
BUDGET COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

Meetings are in-person. Remote access continues to be available. Instructions for joining are at 
https://www.millersburgoregon.gov/bc-budget/page/budget-commitee-meeting-public-hearing-0. If 
you do not have access to a phone or computer, or need additional support, please contact City Hall 

prior to 5:00 p.m. on Monday, April 29, 2024. 

Meeting link to join via computer: 
https://aspenuc.accessionmeeting.com/j/11597014359 

Phone number to join meeting:  503-212-9900 
Meeting ID:  115 9701 4359 

A. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Raum

B. ROLL CALL

C. INTRODUCTIONS

D. APPOINT CHAIRPERSON

E. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
1) May 10, 2023 - Budget Committee Meeting
2) May 16, 2023 - Budget Committee Meeting

Action:

F. AGENCY DONATION REQUESTS

G. OVERVIEW OF STRATEGIC PLAN

H. REVIEW CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

I. RECEIVE BUDGET MESSAGE & PROPOSED FY 2024-2025 BUDGET

J. OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
The public has the opportunity to address the Committee during "Public Comment” while in the virtual
meeting by virtually signaling by unmuting first, then those who call in will be acknowledged, or if the
public prefers, may send written comments by email to citvclerk@MillersburgOregon.gov. Please limit
comments to one page and include your name and address. Emails received before 5:00 p.m. on the
day of the meeting will be included and read into the record.

K. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming Meetings: 
Visit the City’s online calendar: https://www.MillersburgOregon.gov/calendar 

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation to attend or 
participate, please notify the Millersburg City Hall in advance by calling 458-233-6300. 

Rules of Conduct for Public Hearings 

1. No person shall be disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly conduct of the hearing.

2. Persons shall not testify without first receiving recognition from the presiding officer and stating their full 
name and residence address. 

3. No person shall present irrelevant, immaterial, or repetitious testimony or evidence.

4. There shall be no audience demonstrations such as applause, cheering, display of signs, or other 
conduct disruptive of the hearing.

Page 1 of 72

https://www.millersburgoregon.gov/bc-budget/page/budget-commitee-meeting-public-hearing-0
https://aspenuc.accessionmeeting.com/j/11597014359
mailto:citvclerk@MillersburgOregon.gov
https://www.millersburgoregon.gov/calendar


This page intentionally left blank 

Page 2 of 72



 

  P a g e  1 
 

 
 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MINUTES 
May 10, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: Meeting called to order by Chair Mark Raum at 6:00 p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

Councilors Present: Mayor Scott Cowan, Councilors Dave Harms (6:05 
p.m.), Mike Hickam, Mark Raum, and John Sullivan 

 
Committee Members: Lorri Headrick (virtually), Doug Iverson, Mike Martin,  

Talley Richardson and Rob Yencopal 
 
Staff Present: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager; Janelle Booth, Assistant 

City Manager/City Engineer/Budget Officer; Forrest 
Reid, City Attorney; and Sheena Dickerman, City 
Recorder 

 
C. INTRODUCTIONS 

Chair Mark Raum asked the Budget Committee to introduce themselves.  
 

D. APPOINT CHAIRPERSON 
Chair Mark Raum opened nominations for Chairperson of the Budget Committee. 
 
 Action: Motion to nominate Mark Raum as the chairperson for the Budget 
Committee by Mayor Cowan; seconded by Councilor John Sullivan. 
 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
 Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
 Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
 Doug Iverson:  Aye 

Mike Martin:   Aye 
Talley Richardson:  Aye  
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 9/0 
 

E. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
1) Approval of April 26, 2022, and May 5, 2022, Budget Committee Meeting 

Minutes 
Chair Mark Raum pointed out a correction to the April 26, 2022, minutes, on 
page 1, the motion reads “Mark” Martin and it should be “Mike” Martin.  
 
Action: Motion to approve the April 26, 2022, and May 5, 2022, Budget 
Committee meeting minutes as corrected made by Committee Member Mike 
Martin; seconded by Mayor Scott Cowan. 

 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Dave Harms: Aye 

Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Page 3 of 72



 

  P a g e  2 
 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
 Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
 Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
 Doug Iverson:  Aye 

Mike Martin:   Aye 
Talley Richardson:  Aye  
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 10/0 
  

F. AGENCY DONATION REQUESTS       6:12 p.m. 
Chair Mark Raum explained this was an opportunity for community agencies to 
request support for their future programs.  
 
Glenda Lonstron, ABC House Development Director said the ABC house is a 
children’s advocate center. She shared the history and purpose of the 
organization. She highlighted that in the past year they have served 833 children, 
38 of those were from Millersburg. She went through the referral process when a 
child may have been abused and detailed the entire process*. Their goal is to 
serve as many children as possible and as promptly as possible.    
 
Ryan Lamm, Athletic Director, Boys and Girls Club of Albany, went through the 
three categories that the City’s funds have supported; the Millersburg Park multi 
sports camp, done annually; a winter basketball program that is the largest 
program with 112 youth from Millersburg participating; and an annual hoop jam. 
He said that the annual hoop jam is their fundraiser. The grant would go towards 
equipment, staffing and other things that would encompass all the programs.  
 
Committee Member Talley Richardson asked how many participated in the 
summer camp. Lamm replied it averages 25 to 30 kids.  
 
Committee Member Mike Martin expressed his appreciation for the basketball 
program. Mayor Scott Cowan asked about the location of the hoop jam. Lamm 
replied it would be at Linn Benton Community College (LBCC).  
 
Cowan asked how many people from Millersburg would be participating. Lamm 
replied they do not collect information on what school the participants attend.  
 
Cowan asked if the City awards the donation, if Lamm wanted the City to identify 
which category the funds would go to. Lamm stated that if he were to prioritize, 
he recommends donating for the Millersburg Park Summer camp and the 
basketball program.  
 
Nicole Markel, Resource Development Coordinator, City of Albany Parks and 
Recreation passed around a handout* for the 2024 Art & Air festival. Millersburg 
supported the 2023 Art & Air Festival this past fiscal year. She expressed her 
appreciation for the support ad partnerships over the years for the festival. She 
said the festival brings in 50,000 to 60,000 people of all ages and from all over. She 
explained that the festival is put on by sponsorship funds that are raised and not 
from taxpayer dollars. It is a free event to attend, besides parking. Those funds are 

Page 4 of 72



 

  P a g e  3 
 

used to help pay for those that direct traffic. She highlighted that the City has been 
supporting at the “Gold Level” for the past few years.  
 
Councilor Mike Hickam asked what the cost was to put on the event. Markel 
replied that everything is bundled between all the summer concerts. She thought 
it would be under $400,000. All equipment is used for all summer events. They bring 
in $500,000 in sponsorship dollars; half is cash, and the other half is in-kind. Hickam 
asked if there was a charge to vendors. Markel replied there was a fee for food 
vendors and artists. The fee is very small to offset the cost of power needs. There 
are no rental fees.  
 
Randi Moore, Director Senior and Disability Services, Oregon Cascades West 
Council of Governments (COG), Meals on Wheels program, shared some statistics. 
She explained that Meals on Wheels is for anyone to receive assistance, it is not 
need or income based. Those in Millersburg received assistance from the Albany 
site. In 2022, two consumers in Millersburg received over 211 meals. She explained 
the program. One of the most important things about the program is the check in 
to make sure consumers are okay. They have over 350 volunteer drivers over the 
three counties. She added that they have a pet food program and help 
consumers feel a sense of community. She said that the overall cost is $14 per 
meal.  
 
Martin asked if there was a service for temporary situations such as someone 
having surgery. Moore replied yes. 
 
Raum asked how a resident learns about the program. Moore replied it was a 
good question, one of COG’s goals is to help people be more aware of who they 
are and what they do for the community. She listed some of the marketing ideas. 
City Manager Kevin Kreitman pointed out that on the City’s website, under “Our 
Community”, the Senior and Disability Services link will take a person to COG.  
 
Assistant City Manager Janelle Booth said Linn County Fair submitted a letter, it is 
in the agenda packet. Raum allowed time to review the document and no one 
had any questions.  
 
Abby Johnson, Timber Ridge Parent Teacher Committee (PTC) President, said 
there are approximately 300 kids from Millersburg that attend Timber Ridge School. 
PTC is doing fundraisers to help get families into the school and help teachers with 
field trips, etc. She said the funds the City gave last year were used to help with 
the carnival, which had a huge turnout.  She said the funds would be used for next 
school year’s carnival.  
 
Committee Member Doug Iverson asked Markel about who the VIP’s were. Markel 
shared that they treat their partners and sponsors as VIP’s.  
 
Raum reminded the committee about the donation criteria*. 
 

Page 5 of 72



 

  P a g e  4 
 

Kreitman showed a slide of the donation requests and the proposed funding for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 23-24 based on the FY 22-23 funding. He added that the main 
discussion will be when they get into the budget itself.    
 

G. OVERVIEW OF STRATEGIC PLAN 
Kreitman provided the Committee with a high-level overview of the City’s 
Strategic Plan, including reviewing the mission, vision, and values. He pointed out 
that everything the City does is online and are detailed in staff reports, minutes 
and meeting videos on the City’s website. He highlighted that the City is limited to 
three percent growth with the tax base. He explained that without new growth it 
can limit what the City can do. He said the City is blessed because it has a large 
industrial base. He went through strategic priorities. He stated that having 
Community Development Director Matt Straite on staff is valuable and needed. 
He stated the City would not have the infrastructure it has today without industries. 
He used Tangent as an example of a city that does not have industry and does 
not have the infrastructure.  
 

H. REVIEW CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
Booth went over the overview of the Capital Improvement Program for the 
upcoming fiscal year. Funding comes from a variety of sources, including System 
Development Charges (SDCs).  
 
Booth showed each individual project planned/funded or unfunded but focused 
on the FY 2023-2024. Hickam asked if these were current year dollars or inflated. 
She said that they are current year dollars and every year it is inflated based on 
calculation.  
 
Booth explained the Parks projects for 2023-2024. Some funds will come from 
grants, SDCs, and from anticipated property sales. The list of projects are from the 
Parks Master Plan and continue to move up on the timeframe. She mentioned the 
tennis court resurface needs to be done soon and the infield mix is being added 
to what is already there and will be evaluated before any work is done.  
 
Raum asked about additional drainage. Booth replied that it was for the south 
field which does have drainage. She said the drainage for the north field is listed 
under Plan Year: 2025-2026. Raum asked about prioritization. Booth replied that it 
was based on the original Parks Master Plan that was adopted. These can be 
changed.  
 
Hickam asked if the north field was being used. Raum said it would be used more 
if it wasn’t holding water. Booth said it was difficult to prepare the north field. 
Richardson asked if any of the organizations that are using the field have offered 
to offset the cost. Booth replied yes, but no one has offered to pay for all the 
drainage that is needed, they helped with the fencing. Hickam suggested putting 
a small storage out there for coaches to put the field back the way it was before 
a game or practice. Booth replied they already have a key to the storage.  
 
Cowan suggested having pickleball instead of tennis courts. Pickleball and tennis 
can be done together, it is a multi-use. Richardson agreed. She said it was 

Page 6 of 72



 

  P a g e  5 
 

mentioned at a Parks Commission and pushback came from residents in the area 
that pickleball was a louder sport. She liked it being multi-use. Booth shared that it 
wasn’t the residents that brought it up, but other jurisdictions have had issues with 
residents where there is pickleball because the sound of the ball. She added that 
it should be a discussion with the Parks Commission. Councilor Hickam was 
supportive of pickleball. Kreitman added that he sees a lot of people playing 
tennis during nicer weather. Members and staff discussed the possibilities, pros and 
cons, noise, and public outreach. No decisions were made.  
 
Raum asked that the Parks Commission consider which ballpark they address next. 
Kreitman said that it is not easy to do the drainage and will be expensive. Booth 
talked about the drainage.  
 
Booth went through Public Facilities projects. She said the County has approached 
staff about putting in a permanent ballot drop box. There will need to be some 
reconfiguration. Members and staff discussed the drop box area.  
 
Booth said the generator project is for the cost to put in the generator, the City 
already owns. The office project is to reconfigure to make efficient use of space. 
Richardson asked if there was modular furniture that could be reconfigured. 
Kreitman replied that the furniture was built and not the best from an ergonomic 
standpoint. Members and staff discussed the front office area.  
 
Hickam asked about the unfunded projects in Parks, with a large ending balance 
that continues to grow, why not stick some of the unfunded projects in the budget. 
Kreitman explained that some of the funds are SDCs and the City is restricted on 
what it can do. Booth explained that when the Parks Master Plan was done the 
first five years of prioritized projects were the smaller ones that could be done. She 
said some of the unfunded ones are the bigger projects but are identified as 
projects that the City wants to do. She explained that these projects count 
towards what the City collects for SDCs and it is important to maintain the lists. She 
explained that SDCs can only be used for new capital growth related projects. 
System Development Charges cannot be used for maintenance or repair. 
Kreitman added that the City also has to balance the ongoing maintenance. 
Members and staff talked about the uses of SDCs, comparison to Albany’s, and 
Millersburg having automatic escalation based on construction cost indexes and 
total cost for a new family home. 
 
Booth continued to Transportation projects. She explained the Zuhlke project 
funding, where it came from, and why it was on the list for this year. She said that 
the amount listed is not the cost of the project but what is being held for the 
project.   
 
Richardson asked if Transition Parkway was approved to move forward. Booth 
replied it is in design, the amount listed is what staff expects to expend on the 
project to take the City through design, bidding and construction of next year. It 
is not the overall project costs. Raum said it looked like $4.5 million for the full 
project. Booth stated that is for the street portion, it does not include the water 
main or the park. Staff and members discussed the project costs for next year.  

Page 7 of 72



 

  P a g e  6 
 

 
Booth talked about the bridge replacement at Waverly. The City has a grant for 
this. It is the bridge that goes to Talking Water Gardens. Millersburg has jurisdiction 
over the bridge. She talked about County support, the City’s portion of the cost, 
and what would be taking place during the fiscal year, and the grants. 
 
Booth said that street lighting was a continuation from this fiscal year. She talked 
about the NE Woods Road shared use path and that it would be done over a 
couple of years.  
 
Hickam asked if there was a reason why the street lighting in the City seemed dark. 
Booth said there are standards and the places that have LED fixtures are brighter 
but some of the older areas are probably not as bright. She explained that the 
level of light is more of a policy decision and not an engineering one. The City’s 
standards have been the same as Albany’s. Kreitman pointed out that the lighting 
on NE Woods is the same as when it was rural. Staff and members talked about 
the lighting in Millersburg, some areas are too bright, and some are not enough. 
Booth added that during new developments staff do check for lighting at the 
mailboxes. She explained that fixtures can spread light in different ways and can 
impact areas. She added that it can be difficult to know what fixture Pacific Power 
is installing.  
 
Booth stated that stormwater is a new area and there are no projects planned at 
this time. The City does collect SDCs for stormwater. She explained that when the 
City did the Stormwater Master Plan some projects were identified but after 
reevaluating they dropped off the list because they were not critical. She 
mentioned that the one with the highest priority was one that was private 
property. She added that there is no revenue source for stormwater. Any funding 
for stormwater is a transfer from the General Fund, besides the SDCs the City 
collects. The funds being transferred from General Fund is all going towards 
maintenance. Raum asked if there was a way to tie the stormwater that collects 
into Millersburg to this. Booth replied no. She talked about the process and what 
SDCs could be used for and capacity.  
 
Hickam asked why the City couldn’t tie stormwater to water and sewer bills. 
Kreitman said there are cities that have established a stormwater utility fee, it is a 
separate fee. He stated that because of industry, and as the City sees growth in 
industry, the City will continue to be able to not have a stormwater fee. He 
explained that residential and commercial do not pay for themselves, industry 
brings the large value in tax base and franchise. He talked about the value of the 
industry and keeping the $3.50 tax base for residents. Booth said there is structure 
to implement a stormwater fee, if needed, but staff is hoping not to. She talked 
about the Enterprise funds, water and sewer, are self-sustaining funds.   
 
Booth continued to Wastewater projects. She described the projects. Hickam 
asked about the 10 percent. Booth explained that it is based on the City’s 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Albany and ownership. She commented 
that it is different from water. Hickam said it seemed off, based on population. 
Booth explained that the City is not billed 10 percent of all the operating cost just 

Page 8 of 72



 

  P a g e  7 
 

the flow but for capital projects the City pays a portion. Kreitman added that the 
City is paying 10 percent of the capacity. Hickam was curious about the capacity 
of the plant. Staff and Members talked about capacity, Millersburg portion and 
the plants room for growth.  
 
Booth said that a year ago Millersburg was using 50 percent of the capacity the 
City owns. Cowan talked about the history of the partnership. Hickam wanted to 
know what Albany’s capacity was, what the City purchased with the 10 percent 
and any planned expansion. Kreitman explained that there is potential for the City 
to buy more. Cowan said Albany showed another area of growth at their site that 
could be used. Cowan and staff talked about Albany’s work on compost. 
Kreitman emphasized that the City has a great working relationship with Albany.  
 
Booth mentioned that when the City replaces the ATI pump at the lift stations, the 
City will have more capacity for conveying the water to the wastewater plant. 
Staff talked about the future wastewater projects and if large industry or industries 
came in, they would pay a portion of the expansions. Booth explained that all the 
infrastructure in Millersburg is solely owned by the City. The City does contract with 
Albany for the maintenance because they have the staff and equipment.  
 
Hickam asked if SDCs could be used on the unfunded project. Booth replied yes. 
Hickam asked why it was left unfunded. Booth explained that capital projects are 
expensive and there is not driving need. She added that most of the expansions 
in the past have been driven by development. She said that it is a little different 
with water, due to fire protection and why water is a higher priority. Kreitman said 
that if something came in a lot of times it will be paid for by industry with their 
connection fees but often there could be grants depending on the jobs and value 
coming in. Booth added that having unfunded projects does not mean that the 
City plans to pay for them. She described a project that has a condition of 
approval to get water and sewer to the project.  
 
Booth described the water projects for the fiscal year.  Raum asked about the size 
of the AC line. Booth said 12 inches and the ductal is 20 inches. It already exists 
but takes work to transfer the services to the newer line. Staff talked about the 
inability to abandon it due to Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) 
requirements and not being able to pipe burst it. Booth explained that there is no 
indication that this one has any issues but it was put in before the City existed. 
Cowan said the pipe would be worked on this fiscal year and next. Booth said this 
year would be dealing with ATI service, next year would be Bakelite and 
Flakeboard, and FY 2025-2026 would be dealing with the south end to transferring 
services. She explained the process. Members and staff talked about the timeline 
and why they are separate projects. 
 
Booth talked about the higher cost in the system expansion to industrial property 
south of Conser was due to material procurement.  
 
Cowan and staff discussed the generator project.  
   

Budget Committee Chair Mark Raum recessed the meeting at 7:58 p.m. 

Page 9 of 72



 

  P a g e  8 
 

 
Budget Committee Chair Mark Raum reopened the meeting at 8:03 p.m. 

 
I. RECEIVED BUDGET MESSAGE & PROPOSED FY 2023-24 BUDGET 

Kreitman reviewed the Budget Message.  
 
Kreitman presented an overview of the City*. He stated that when the mill left it 
was devastating to the area, the region saw a loss of restaurants and other 
businesses. He went through the historical and forecast trends. Straite said that a 
population of 5,000 is when the City starts planning how to incorporate density. 
Staff and Members discussed residential density, available land, population 
prediction and UGB. Richardson asked if there are discussions to reduce the lot 
sizes. Kreitman replied that discussions at Planning Commission and City Council 
are to maintain what the City has now, 10,000-square-foot lots. Staff talked about 
State requirements, the plan for mixed use/density and what the City has done to 
prepare for growth, for example Fire Station staffing.  
 
Kreitman went through Millersburg’s historical timeline. He highlighted that 
Millersburg is recognized by the post office as a city. Richardson asked about 
Millersburg having their own zip code. Kreitman said if the City becomes large 
enough it might. Staff and members talked about having their own zip code. 
Kreitman continued the historical timeline, industries, and incorporation. He 
highlighted that Cowan was the fourth Mayor and that next year will be the 50th 
anniversary. He talked about the City’s tax base. Staff talked about infrastructure 
and how franchise fees helped pay for a lot of infrastructure before the City had 
to levy taxes.    
 
Staff and Cowan talked about the history of the City withdrawing from Albany 
Rural and Jefferson Rural and the impact on the tax base. Kreitman talked about 
Millersburg’s trends. He said that staff are hearing a lot from new residents wanting 
similar services as cities the size of Albany, including library and recreation. There 
are also requests for commercial businesses too. He explained that new large 
industries coming in would help bring those services to the City. He described the 
potential use of the City owned commercial zoned property. Staff talked about 
the need for regulations with residential growth and an increase of complaints. 
Kreitman went through trends and property taxes. The City has the lowest property 
taxes, residents’ largest portions are Greater Albany Public Schools (GAPS) bond 
and Linn County. Hickam and Cowan commented on communicating this 
information to residents. Kreitman said that under Oregon law the maximum taxes 
can go up is 3 percent, without the people voting it in.  He highlighted that Albany 
and Millersburg are the only cities without a fire tax rate. Raum asked if the last two 
slides were on the website. Kreitman said they are in the budget.  
 
Booth mentioned the water and sewer summary. Raum asked if someone could 
have multiple accounts. Booth replied yes, it is per water meter. Kreitman went 
through the top ten a/v in the City. He explained Enterprise zones and staff has 
asked for a claw back for emergency services, $2.61 of the $3.50.   
 

Page 10 of 72



 

  P a g e  9 
 

Kreitman went through year end fund balances. Booth talked about fund 
revenues, capital expenditures per fund. Hickam asked about the increase in 
water for capital expenditures. Booth will get him more of the breakdown. She 
went through debt service and franchise fees. Councilor John Sullivan asked how 
does the City know that the revenues they show is what the City is getting paid. 
Kreitman replied that the City can ask for the information. He explained that when 
the paper mill was here the power franchise fees were $1.7 million. The paper mill 
had its own substation and when it was shut down the City saw a huge loss. He 
said that during COVID the City saw a loss in franchise fees. He commented that 
Pacific Power has said the City should see a significant increase in the next five 
years based on what ATI has planned. Hickam asked staff for up-to-date numbers 
for franchise fees. Kreitman said the year to date is $620,000 for electrical franchise 
fees.  Staff and members talked about franchise fees and power users. Staff and 
Council members talked about building permits, comparison to other jurisdictions, 
and the lack of impact of SDCs increase on building permits. 
 

J. OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
Budget Committee Chair Mark Raum adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted:     Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
Sheena Dickerman      Kevin Kreitman 
City Recorder      City Manager 
 
*Presentation materials or documents discussed at the meeting that are not in the agenda packet are 
archived in the record. Documents from staff are posted to the website after the meeting. Documents 
submitted by the public are available by emailing info@cityofmillersburg.org.  
 

Page 11 of 72

mailto:info@cityofmillersburg.org


 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MINUTES 
May 16, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: Called to order by Chair Mark Raum at 6:00 p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

Councilors Present: Mayor Scott Cowan, Councilors Dave Harms (7:31 
p.m.), Mike Hickam, Mark Raum, and John Sullivan 

 
Committee Members: Lorri Headrick (virtual), Doug Iverson, Mike Martin and 

Rob Yencopal (virtual) 
 
Members Absent:   Councilors Dave Harms and Talley Richardson 
 
Staff Present: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager; Janelle Booth, 

Assistant City Manager/City Engineer/Budget Officer; 
Forrest Reid, City Attorney; and Sheena Dickerman, 
City Recorder 

 
C. PUBLIC HEARING        6:01 p.m. 

 
Budget Committee Chair Mark Raum stated the public hearing is for State 
Revenue Shared Funds. He explained that members of the public that wish to 
address the topic will be given an opportunity and have three minutes to state 
their case. The proposed budget has been on the City’s website for public 
review.  
 
 
Budget Committee Chair Mark Raum opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.  
 

a. Comments received by correspondence. 
None received. 

b. Audience comments. 
 No public in attendance. 
 

Budget Committee Chair Raum closed the public hearing at 6:02 p.m. 
 

City Manager Kevin Kreitman shared what was budgeted in 2021-2022 versus 
actuals. He said revenues were up and expenditures were lower than projections. 
The General Fund proposed last year was $5.6 million and this year proposed is 
$4.9 million.  He said last year there was $700,000 that was for emergency services 
for the construction of the station. For the proposed budget there is a general 
increase of $400,000 for this fiscal year compared to last year. He commented that 
the overall projection is a $10 million increase that is contingent on upon the sale 
of City property. Staff is proposing a new Economic Development Fund and that 
is where the funds will go. Councilor Mike Hickam asked if there was going to be a 

Page 12 of 72



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Celebration. Kreitman replied that he didn’t believe that there would be a 
Celebration, but staff put funds in for events that could take place this year. Raum 
invited anyone to come to the next Events Planning Committee meeting.  

 
Kreitman went through the General Fund estimated available revenues. Staff has 
always been conservative on collection of revenue, dropping the expected 
increase to 3.5 percent. He went through all the revenues resources. He said the 
transfer from Enterprise Funds is for management of the activities, as all personnel 
come out of the General Fund.  

 
Kreitman went through the estimated expenditures and reserves. He showed that 
staff does not spend down the reserve funds.  

 
Councilor John Sullivan asked if it was budgeted to tear down the house. Kreitman 
replied yes.  

 
Assistant City Manager Janelle Booth talked about SDC restricted funds. Kreitman 
went through dedicated reserve funds.  

 
D. CONTINUED REVIEW OF PROPOSED FY 2023-24 BUDGET 

Kreitman showed the fund narratives. He shared that the past Council and Budget 
Committee had asked about increasing hours from Linn County Sheriff’s Office 
(LCS) and they are unable to do that at this time. Councilor Mike Hickam asked if 
the purchase of the Autopulse was for the fire department. Kreitman affirmed. 
Kreitman and Mayor Scott Cowan shared more about the Autopulse.  
 
Booth shared that the Millersburg Celebration Fund Narrative included language 
to help the new committee to understand how the timing and how the budget 
worked. Budget Committee Mike Martin asked if the Celebration had a low 
attendance. Kreitman replied no, it was low on volunteers and labor intensive.  
 
Booth continued to show the fund narratives. Kreitman said that the Economic 
Development Fund is new and is to track Transition Parkway.  
 
Kreitman shared about a possible Risk Management Fund in the future.  
 
Kreitman shared the slide of the City’s resources, in the agenda packet. Booth said 
that the blue numbers sum up to the black numbers.  
 
Kreitman went through the expenditures. He talked about personnel services. He 
shared that Booth, Straite and himself received a Council approved annual 
increase in January. The proposed budget shows other personnel’s step increase 
and a 5 percent COLA increase for wages in the calculations. He shared the CPIs 
for April. The step increase is based on their anniversary date.  
 
Kreitman said that materials and services is an $18,000 increase for enhanced 
cyber insurance. Cowan asked if staff had training on phishing. Kreitman replied 
that the plan is for staff to receive more. Cowan commented that CIS has a lot of 
good training.   

Page 13 of 72



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Kreitman mentioned possible master planning for City Hall expansion for additional 
office space. He shared some of the ideas.  
 
Kreitman asked for feedback on community support, this would be the time to 
make any recommended changes. Booth showed the column that was for the 
proposed budget, any changes that Committee would direct to make would go 
in the approved column and at the end there would be motion to adopt as 
modified. Hickam asked about the decrease in merchant fees. Kreitman replied 
that with the switch to Xpress is seen to be less than going through Visa. Staff 
discussed the check and credit card fees.  
 
Cowan suggested adding community support for the Millersburg Cemetery. He 
shared about why the City should help support. He recommended starting at 
$2,500. Raum asked if Cowan was asking for a second line item under community 
support or taking it out of miscellaneous. Kreitman recommended to put it in as a 
separate line item for tracking purposes. He said Tim Walter is looking for the 
Cemetery to be self-sufficient. He said that it doesn’t meet the criteria, but it does 
not mean that the Budget Committee and Council couldn’t make an exception 
for an extraordinary circumstance, which this qualifies with historic nature, what it 
is and impacts it has on the community.  
 
Councilor John Sullivan asked if there was no support for Honor Flights this year. 
Kreitman replied there was not a request this year. He said that in the past it was 
associated with the car show.  Raum recommended Community Support be 
rounded to $25,000. He added that $2,500 would be for the Millersburg Cemetery 
and the balance could go to Miscellaneous.  
 
Budget Committee Member Doug Iverson commented that the Community 
Support applications in the agenda packet numbers do not match. Kreitman 
explained that some of their requests are larger, but this is what the City did last 
year. In the past, the Budget Committee has not funded the full request. The 
Committee has the ability to adjust the funding. Cowan liked the numbers 
showing. Sullivan asked if there was a request from South Albany. Kreitman replied 
no. Staff, Councilors and Budget Committee discussed supporting the Cemetery 
and the trees.  
 
Hickam stated that he didn’t agree with supporting the Art & Air Festival or the Linn 
County Fair Expo. He said that the Festival is bringing in lots of revenue. He was fine 
with all the other organizations. Cowan asked if Hickam was suggesting remove 
both of those fundings. Hickam didn’t want to decide on the Fair since he didn’t 
have all the revenue.  
 
Budget Committee Member Rob Yencopal messaged that he is understanding 
that he could approach Council at a later date to request funds for South Albany 
Senior All Night Party. Kreitman stated that has taken place in the past and would 
come out of miscellaneous at a later date. He added that the Art & Air Festival 
has allowed the City to use their equipment for City events, when it hasn’t been in 
conflict with their events. The City has been a long-term sponsor of the Art & Air 

Page 14 of 72



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Festival. Kreitman gave background of relationship with Albany and benefits. Staff 
discussed the Art & Air event.  
 
Raum recommended for Community Support’s next year’s applications a 
modification that they provide a budget, expected revenues and expenditures.  
 
Action: Motion that the Budget Committee consider increasing the line item for 
Community Support to $25,000, creating a line item for the Millersburg Cemetery 
support and funding that line item with $2,500 for the 2023-2024 budget year and 
the difference from the increase for the overall line item for Community Support to 
go to miscellaneous made by Chair Mark Raum;  
 
Discussion: Hickam asked if a decision to support the South Albany Senior Night 
Out could be made this evening. Kreitman said that if they wanted to take that 
step now they could. Committee, Councilors and staff talked about giving funds 
that hadn’t been requested yet and it being able to be put under miscellaneous 
if requested. Cowan added that Council has wanted in the past to see those 
making the request and the follow up with the organizations afterwards.  
 
seconded by Councilor Mike Hickam. 
 
 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
 Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
 Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
 Doug Iverson:  Aye 

Mike Martin:   Aye 
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 8/0 
 
Budget Committee Mike Martin clarified that Raum had requested a standardized 
budget form for future applications. Raum affirmed.  
 
Kreitman addressed IT equipment and computers line items total to $14,000. He 
said that after preparing the budget, staff found out from Oregon Cascades West 
Council of Governments (COG) that the City needs to replace the server, fire wall 
and switch and would be an additional $9,000. Booth added that the number also 
included equipment replacement of some machines.  
 
Hickam commented that materials and supplies had remained status quo. He 
asked if staff thought it would still be the same with the increase on price. Kreitman 
explained that it is based on where the City is at for current year.   
 
Sullivan asked about the Wifi hotspot. Kreitman explained that it is an annual cost 
the City has for internet for phone and internet connection at the Park 
Maintenance shop.  
 

Page 15 of 72



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Action: Motion to up to $23,000 for equipment computers made by Councilor John 
Sullivan; seconded by Budget Committee Member Mike Martin. 
 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
 Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
 Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
 Doug Iverson:  Aye 

Mike Martin:   Aye 
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 8/0 
 
Kreitman addressed legal services, $250,000. He said staff is seeing a lot take place 
with property sales. He stated that City Attorney Forrest Reid has announced that 
he is retiring in July. City Council has given authority to bring on Alan Sorem, 
Saalfeld Griggs, beginning July 1, 2023.   
 
Kreitman stated that last year the City of Albany increased their Library fee to $80. 
He said last year the recommendation was to reimburse the full amount. He said 
that the City is already approximately $600 over. He said that the City reimburses 
up to $200 for recreation. Booth mentioned that staff have been turning people 
away because the City has reached the cap. Sullivan asked what staff thinks that 
the City needs. He said it is important that the City does it. Councilors and staff 
discussed the library reimbursement budget.  
 
Cowan asked if there was interest in doing something similar with the recreation 
reimbursement and paying 100 percent. Budget Committee Member Doug 
Iverson asked how much of an increase did staff see when City went to 100 
percent. Kreitman said there wasn’t much of an increase because the City wasn’t 
reaching the full amount. Sullivan asked how long the City has been at that 
number. Booth said the word was getting out about the program. Cowan stated 
that they never spent up to it before and this is the first year to max out. Hickam 
recommended bumping it to $8,000 and if it starts getting close to maxing out to 
come back to Council.  
 
Action: Motion to increase Library Reimbursement from $5,000 to $8,000 made by 
Mayor Scott Cowan; seconded by Councilor John Sullivan. 
 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
 Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
 Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
 Doug Iverson:  Aye 

Mike Martin:   Aye 
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 8/0 
 
Martin asked if the City gives the Library Card. Raum explained that the resident 
goes to the Library and buys their membership and then turns in their receipt and 

Page 16 of 72



 

6 | P a g e  
 

the City reimburses them for it. Martin asked if it was possible to put on a City card 
that the Library card was made possible due to industry. Discussion followed about 
putting something in with the reimbursement check.  
 
Kreitman asked if Council wanted staff to bring back an amount for library 
reimbursement for the remainder of this fiscal year. Councilors confirmed.  
 
Kreitman said the rental property, $40,000, is for the demolition of the house.  Raum 
asked about moving the Sheriff’s office to that location. Kreitman explained that 
when the fire station was being built there was discussion to build something there 
for them but they preferred to be at City Hall. 
 
Booth said that the City has not reached the cap for the Parks and Recreation 
reimbursement, and doesn’t look like it will. The proposal is for the same as last 
year. Raum clarified that it was 80 percent of each athletic program up to $200 
per household. Staff affirmed. Raum said if someone has three kids in sports, $200 
is the cap. Booth said this is a range of activities. It has to be a non-profit 
organization or schools. Kreitman added that it is not just for kids but for adults. 
Raum asked if it includes the Albany Parks and Recreation catalog that comes 
out for residents to take classes. Kreitman affirmed. Booth stated it cannot be used 
for private organizations, such as gym. Discussion followed about organizations.  
 
Booth went through the Parks budget. Hickam brought up that someone needed 
to look at the sprinkler system at the Park. Booth mentioned that there has been a 
lot of repairs on the sprinkler system.  
 
Booth said that refunds was highlighted because it was added in the 
supplemental budget this year, there is nothing budgeted, but needs to remain 
on the budget form.  
 
Raum asked if City spent $5,000 to resurface play area. Booth replied it is the 
budgeted number not actuals. It was wood chips. Kreitman reminded that they 
have to be certified that it’s not contaminated and meet a certain depth.  
 
Hickam asked if the City rents the Park. Kreitman said that the shelter gets rented. 
Kreitman reminded that staff budgets conservatively on revenue.  
 
Booth explained that SDC-I was included in supplemental and will need to be 
included until it drops off.  
 
Kreitman went through emergency services. He mentioned the contracts, the 
equipment and utilities.  
 
Kreitman went through the Building Fund and talked about when payments are 
made.  

  
Kreitman mentioned that there was no expectation to spend anything out of the 
Equipment Reserve.  

 

Page 17 of 72



 

7 | P a g e  
 

Kreitman said that it depends on event planning this year. He went through what 
the City has historically put through it and business.  
 
Raum asked about replacement of windows and HVAC. Kreitman said HVAC has 
been replaced. Booth said the reserve is a holding place.  
 
Hickam asked why the holiday light display was not included in the Celebration. 
Kreitman explained that it was a separate program. He explained to keep the 
Celebration separate, holiday lights weren’t included in the past.   
 
Booth went through Enterprise funds. She stated that there are resources and 
expenditures. She said the highway use tax is the main funding for maintenance 
of streets. She mentioned that System Development Charges (SDCs) will be spent 
down with Transition Parkway.  
 
Hickam asked where the highway use tax came from. Booth replied the State, and 
one percent must go towards bike and pedestrian paths.  
 
Booth mentioned that the grant listed is the for the Old Salem Road Guardrail 
project. Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) is doing the project. 
Discussion followed about location and concerns about the area.  
 
Booth talked about the streets program and the desire to purchase radar street 
signs. Cowan asked if it is based off road surveys. Booth explained the guide for 
maintenance. It is recommended to spend more funds on maintenance. She 
explained that as more funds come in through development more funds will be 
used towards it but staff is limiting it to what is received from the tax fund. If the 
City wanted to do more funds towards streets it would need to come out of the 
GF. She stated SDCs cannot be used for maintenance, they can only be used for 
new roads or projects that increase capacity. Discussion followed about street 
maintenance, timing and types of sealing.  
 
Booth mentioned that transfers are for personnel services. Hickam asked what 
funds can be transferred to GF. Booth explained that it is how the funds are spent. 
Staff said that SDCs cannot be used for personnel. Discussion took place regarding 
transfers and transfers from Enterprise funds.  

 
Councilor Dave Harms arrived at 7:31 p.m. 
 

Booth reminded that stormwater has no revenue resources. There will need to be 
more transferred from GF. Kreitman shared that most cities charge a stormwater 
fee and depending on development the City may need to consider that in the 
future. Booth shared about the costs, where the funds go toward and the 
requirements. She explained the transfers in from GF is for operating costs and 
transfers in for personnel costs and showing both in and out to help with tracking. 
She said the reserve is the SDCs.  
 

Page 18 of 72



 

8 | P a g e  
 

Cowan commented that industry is helping this be supported without a fee. If the 
City struggled financially in the future this would be an area that would need to 
be focused on looking into a fee or not.  
 
Hickam asked if the SDCs did not cover the $10,000 for Private Construction of 
Public Infrastructure. Booth replied no. This is an inspection for private developers. 
Hickam asked if the cost could be passed onto the developer. Booth replied yes 
and showed where it was listed a revenue source.  She explained that the 
developer pays upfront, but it can take over a year to be an expenditure. There 
are no known projects at this time.  Kreitman explained that the expenditure has 
to be allocated.  
 
Booth moved to sewer. She said there is a revenue source, sewer fees. Staff 
estimates revenue low. She explained that the City pays Albany for some loans 
and Albany pays the City for some. She said that the grant is for a feasibility study 
that has been applied for.  
 
Booth said for expenditures that the O&M Plant is tracking what is being paid to 
Albany. She explained that for collection the City didn’t spend as much as staff 
thought they would this year. Raum asked if the City accomplished what it 
wanted. Booth replied no. It didn’t get scheduled in time. She pointed out that the 
flow monitoring is an increase, this would be for an additional monitor for a year 
and may not need to be continued after that.  

 
Hickam said that it looked like the City had $625,000 overspent. He said SDCs were 
not budgeted.  Booth explained that the SDCs are in the CIP project list. She said 
that for stormwater it was just the SDCs but water and sewer it’s SDCs and includes 
the balance being carried over for future projects.  
 
For water Booth pointed out that expenditures in the O&M Water treatment plant 
are going up because of the split of cost between Albany’s two water treatment 
plants. Albany realized that more of the cost should be allocated to the Albany-
Millersburg Plant based on flow. Cowan added that a positive look is Millersburg 
has been getting a deal.  
 
Raum asked what SCADA upgrade was. Booth replied it was IT.  
 
Booth explained the City pays a portion of Albany’s Water Master Plan, because 
Albany is looking at the system as a whole, evaluating treatment plants and 
storage. She said that Albany had done the work this year but offered not to bill 
the City until this fiscal year. Cowan asked how it was based off it. Booth shared 
that staff had spent a lot of time looking at the costs and tasks and this ended up 
being around 5 percent.  
 
Kreitman said that the Economic Development Fund is primarily transfer in from 
Streets and other sources and the sale of property. Booth said expenditures would 
be wetland consultants, engineering consultants, and radon consultants. She 
pointed out what is expected to be spent on Transition Parkway. Kreitman added 
that the $50,000 for economic development services is for PacWest on assistance 

Page 19 of 72



 

9 | P a g e  
 

with the City’s properties. Raum asked if property develops and Transition 
Parkway, if radon services would disappear. Kreitman replied it depends on if 
someone purchases the property or leases it.  Booth said the City has not currently 
been paying for any of the costs.    

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 
 

F. Action: Motion to approve and recommend to the City Council the adoption of 
the proposed FY 2023-2024 Budget and Capital Improvement Program as modified 
made by Mayor Scott Cowan; seconded by Budget Committee Member Rob 
Yencopal. 
 Mayor Scott Cowan: Aye 
 Councilor Mike Hickam: Aye 

Councilor Mark Raum: Aye 
Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 
Lorri Headrick:  Aye 
Doug Iverson:  Aye 
Mike Martin:   Aye 
Rob Yencopal:  Aye  

Motion Passed: 8/0 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Mark Raum adjourned the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted:     Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
Sheena Dickerman      Kevin Kreitman 
City Recorder      City Manager 

Page 20 of 72



Page 21 of 72



Page 22 of 72



1 
 

ABC House Supporting Documentation  
2024-25 Donations and Sponsorship Request Application  
 
Describe the project or activity for which you are seeking support. 

ABC House provides high-quality child abuse assessments for local children when there are 
concerns of abuse and neglect, and offers support and healing to children and families who have 
suffered from abuse through a range of comprehensive services, including medical examinations, 
forensic interviews, family support and referral, and trauma counseling. Our team of child abuse 
experts and professionals provide compassionate, specialized care and support to approximately 
800 infants, children and youth each year. Centers like ABC House are the most effective means of 
ensuring that children are not further traumatized by the system that was designed to protect them 
by providing the specialized help and support they need in one location, by a multidisciplinary 
team. Without ABC House, children would be forced to share their experiences repeatedly, with 
multiple people who are not working together. 

Demand for ABC House child abuse assessment and support services has been high throughout 
the last three years and shows no signs of slowing. This includes cases with pronounced severity of 
abuse, including significant physical abuse, sexual abuse, parental substance abuse, and domestic 
violence. Research shows that public health emergencies increase the risk for child abuse and 
neglect because of increased stressors and loss of financial and social supports. A number of 
stressors associated with the pandemic are continuing to have an effect: disruption of routine, 
increased stress and substance abuse, and reduced access to resources (now exacerbated by 
inflation). In 2022, we served 833 children (a new record) and provided 1,500 unique instances of 
service, an 8% increase over 2021 (when we served 771 children) and an increase of 16% over 
2019. In 2023, we served 753 children, a decrease primarily due to staffing challenges. Because of 
the on-going high demand for our services, it is vitally important that we do all we can to serve as 
many children as possible, as promptly as possible. 

Although every county in Oregon is required to be served by a child abuse intervention center, ABC 
House and its counterparts throughout the state rarely receive tax-dollar funding. At ABC House, no 
child in need is ever turned away, and children are seen at no out-of-pocket cost to the family; if the 
family has insurance, ABC House bills their insurer for any reimbursable services, such as for the 
medical exam. However, because 90% of families served are low-income or underinsured, less 
than 20% of our operations are funded by insurance reimbursement. We estimate the cost of 
providing an assessment appointment for one child would exceed $4,000.00. 

 What is the purpose of your group/organization? 

An accredited member of the National Children's Alliance, ABC House is the only agency providing 
child abuse assessment and support services for Oregon's Linn and Benton counties. Mission: We 
work to break the cycle of child abuse and neglect, supporting children as they find their voice, and 
helping children and families heal and thrive. Vision: We envision a world in which every child has 
the opportunity to be happy, healthy and safe; parents and caregivers who understand the impact 
of their actions on children; and a community that actively and vocally stands up to prevent child 
abuse and neglect. 

Page 23 of 72



2 
 

 
 What are the objectives or outcomes to be achieved by the project or activity? 

ABC House's Comprehensive Child Abuse Assessment & Support Services are central to our 
mission, with the goals of identifying abuse early so that children are protected from further harm; 
providing necessary medical care to promote healing from the physical effects of abuse; 
connecting children and families to local agencies and community resources they need to support 
a healthy, safe and healing home environment, including trauma counseling so that they can heal 
emotionally. Eligible participants are children 0 -18 years referred by community partners for 
concerns of physical abuse, sexual abuse, or neglect. Young children are most at-risk for abuse and 
neglect; in Oregon, the majority of child victims are younger than seven years old. Objective: During 
a 12-month period of support, we anticipate providing child abuse assessment services to roughly 
575 Linn County children.  

When police or child protective services are concerned that a child has been abused, the child is 
brought to ABC House by a caregiver or parent for an assessment. The assessment goes at the 
child's pace and includes a head-to-toe medical exam, followed by a forensic interview where the 
child can talk about their experience with a trained interviewer who knows how to ask the right 
questions to obtain accurate, objective information without leading, interrogating or retraumatizing 
a child. Families also receive guidance throughout the assessment process and referrals from 
Family Support Advocates for other needed assistance, such as housing and domestic violence 
assistance. Evidence from the assessment is used to help determine whether abuse occurred and 
what supports and services the child may need going forward. The multidisciplinary team makes 
decisions together about how to help the child with safety planning and recommendations. 

We also incorporate principles of trauma-informed care in all of our interactions with clients. Our 
goals include minimizing any additional trauma and ensuring each and every client feels safe, 
supported, empowered and informed. We believe everyone’s experience of traumatic events will be 
different, and how children are affected, cope and recover varies greatly. All clinical and non-
clinical staff members receive trauma-informed training to help them recognize the impact of 
trauma on our clients’ lives. 

What is the benefit to the Millersburg community of the project or activity? (e.g. job creation, 
structured activities for disadvantaged youth, support to senior citizens) 

During a 12-month period, we anticipate serving 575 or more Linn County children (562 were seen 
last year; 639 the year prior), including an estimated 35 from the Millersburg area. All children 
served are referred by DHS, law enforcement or the medical community. Our records show that at 
least 27 children from the Millersburg area were served at ABC House last year. This is likely a low 
number due to tracking challenges (Millersburg and Albany have the same zip code). Further, if the 
state of Oregon has legal custody of a child, (i.e., the child is in foster care) at the time of the 
assessment appointment, the contact address is automatically listed as the Department of Human 
Services office in Albany or Corvallis, regardless of where the child may have resided or the location 
of the alleged abuse.  

With your support, Millersburg children impacted by abuse or neglect, and their families, will 
receive the vital services they need to heal. According to the CDC, children who have been abused 

Page 24 of 72



3 
 

may suffer anxiety or post-traumatic stress; over the long term, they are at increased risk for 
experiencing future violence victimization and perpetration, substance abuse, sexually transmitted 
infections, and delayed brain development-- leading to lower educational achievement, poverty, 
even early death. The compounding costs of medical care, lost productivity, child welfare services, 
criminal justice and specialized education services all place an additional burden on cities and 
counties - above and beyond the human suffering associated with child abuse. These outcomes 
can be prevented, especially when children receive services and support early on. With your grant 
support, substantive positive change can happen in the lives of the children who have been abused 
when they receive the specialized services and support they need, and justice is served. 

ABC House partners effectively with multidisciplinary professionals actively involved in the child 
abuse investigation and response to ensure a collaborative, efficient and child-focused process. 
ABC House is a member of the Linn County Multidisciplinary Team (MDT), comprised of the District 
Attorney’s Office, law enforcement, DHS, the juvenile department, mental health services, and 
youth serving agencies in Linn County, which meets weekly to share information on pending child 
abuse cases. ABC House fosters collaboration and communication amongst agencies, minimizes 
the number of times that children are interviewed, and provides a swift, sensitive, and culturally 
responsive coordinated response to child victims and their families. 

Support from funders like the City of Millersburg helps ensure increasing numbers of Linn County 
children and their families will receive the vital services they need to heal, including medical 
examinations by physicians specializing in the recognition and treatment of child abuse; forensic 
interviews by professionals trained in talking to children to obtain accurate and objective 
information; family support and referral services to help families cope with the discovery of abuse; 
and trauma counseling to help children and family members move past abuse to begin healing.  

How will the project or activity be promoted and how will you measure, evaluate, and report its 
success? (e.g. audience surveys, attendee numbers, verbal feedback) 

ABC House staff regularly use targeted metrics to evaluate our Child Abuse Assessment & Support 
Services program. We collect data and compare actual results with projected goals using data 
elements that include client demographics, types of abuse, and number/type of services provided. 
Relevant measures of success for this program include: providing child-sensitive assessment 
services to children in a welcoming environment that allows objective information to be gathered 
and minimizes trauma to the child; facilitating healing for children and caregivers by providing clear 
information and making effective referrals to caregivers for additional services; and fostering a 
multidisciplinary approach with investigating agencies for more collaborative, efficient 
investigations. These outcomes are measured through follow-up surveys completed anonymously 
by caregivers immediately following the appointment. We are pleased to report that recent 
caregiver survey results show that the majority of respondents agree/strongly agree that ABC House 
facilitated healing for their child. Recent comments include:  

• "My son felt safe with the Interviewer and trusts her.”  
• "My child told me he felt safe while here, even without me in the room." 
• "I was impressed. Thank you for offering a neutral and safe place for [name] to discuss 

sensitive information."  

Page 25 of 72



4 
 

• "She was very nervous coming in and was able to calm down. Xander (therapy dog) was 
great.”   

We are working to expand our outreach to historically underserved populations to ensure we are 
meeting the needs of children in these communities. Child abuse and neglect occurs across all 
races, nationalities, and socioeconomic groups; that said, historically marginalized communities 
commonly have less access to resources. Outreach efforts include offering English and Spanish 
language community prevention and education training workshops virtually or in community 
venues, like churches and schools. We also participate in health fairs and events that are 
scheduled throughout our service area, and actively increase our contacts in underserved 
communities. 

Has your organization applied to, or does it intend to apply to, another organization for cash or 
in-kind support for the project or activity? If yes, please provide details. 

Yes. We have several pending and secured grants to help support this application’s request, 
including: Target Corporation ($2,500 Received); Knife River ($3,000 Received); Weyerhaeuser 
Giving Fund ($3,500 Received); City of Philomath ($5,000 Received); Rite Aid Healthy Futures 
Foundation ($10,000 Received); Wheeler Foundation ($10,000 Requested); Ralph Hull Foundation 
($15,000 Requested); Victims of Crime Act Grant ($231,698 Requested/Received); Benton County 
Child Abuse Multidisciplinary Intervention (CAMI) Fund Grant ($71,000 Requested/Received); 
Pacific Power Foundation ($3,500 Received), Powell Foundation ($5,000 Requested); Linn County 
CAMI Funds ($136,928 Requested/Received); Maybelle Clark Macdonald Fund ($25,000 Pledged); 
National Children’s Alliance ($50,000 Pledged); Benton County Community Foundation ($10,000 
Requested); Ackley Foundation ($10,000 Requested); and Bess Spiva Timmons Foundation ($5,000 
Requested). 

 

Page 26 of 72



 3:04 PM

 06/28/23

 Accrual Basis

 ABC House

 Assessment Budget Overview
 July 2023 through June 2024

Jul '23 - Jun 24

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 · Revenue

4002 · Donations

4003 · General Donations 150,000.00

4006 · Gift Cards 600.00

Total 4002 · Donations 150,600.00

4007 · In-Kind Donations

4009 · In-Kind Donations - Operational 46,077.29

Total 4007 · In-Kind Donations 46,077.29

4010 · Grants

4015 · Benton County CAMI 71,000.00

4020 · Linn County CAMI 136,928.58

4025 · VOCA 231,698.42

4027 · Other Grant Revenue 472,318.98

Total 4010 · Grants 911,945.98

4030 · Fees for Service

4035 · Court and Records 10,000.00

4040 · Medical Consults 103,200.00

4045 · Medical Billing 130,000.00

4048 · Interview Billing 15,000.00

Total 4030 · Fees for Service 258,200.00

Total 4000 · Revenue 1,366,823.27

Total Income 1,366,823.27

Gross Profit 1,366,823.27

Expense

6000 · Expenses

6015 · Building Expenses 42,756.07

6040 · Computers

6042 · Computer Repairs &  Maintenance 4,908.34

6044 · Computer Software and Hardware 30,967.55

Total 6040 · Computers 35,875.89

6045 · Contract Labor

6046 · In-Kind - Contract Labor 36,114.97

6045 · Contract Labor - Other 72,229.94

Total 6045 · Contract Labor 108,344.91

6055 · Dues and Subscriptions 15,902.87

6060 · Fees and Registration 885.37

6085 · Professional Services 116,525.01

6090 · Insurance

6092 · Health Insurance 77,700.00

6094 · Liability/Medical Malpractice 42,199.42

6098 · Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,863.74

Total 6090 · Insurance 121,763.16

 Page 1 of 2Page 27 of 72



 3:04 PM

 06/28/23

 Accrual Basis

 ABC House

 Assessment Budget Overview
 July 2023 through June 2024

Jul '23 - Jun 24

6100 · General Office Supplies

6101 · In-Kind General Office Supplies 912.32

6100 · General Office Supplies - Other 1,332.68

Total 6100 · General Office Supplies 2,245.00

6105 · Payroll Taxes 93,197.67

6110 · Photocopy and Printing 3,382.16

6115 · Postage 129.29

6120 · Program Supplies

6125 · Advocacy

6126 · In-Kind Advocacy 9,000.00

6125 · Advocacy - Other 9,000.00

Total 6125 · Advocacy 18,000.00

6140 · Medical

6141 · In-Kind Medical Supply 50.00

6140 · Medical - Other 25,339.66

Total 6140 · Medical 25,389.66

Total 6120 · Program Supplies 43,389.66

6150 · Public Relations & Advertising 140.58

6155 · Retirement Match 29,252.67

6156 · Staff Wellness 6,295.47

6175 · Salaries and Wages 1,116,739.74

6229 · Internal Admin Expense 75,970.17

6230 · Trainings 1,266.75

6231 · CAMI MDT Trainings 16,650.00

6232 · Committee Trainings 800.27

6235 · Travel 865.00

Total 6000 · Expenses 1,832,377.71

Total Expense 1,832,377.71

Net Ordinary Income -465,554.44

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 · Other Income - Carry Over

7005 · Fiscal Year Carry Over 465,554.44

Total 7000 · Other Income - Carry Over 465,554.44

Total Other Income 465,554.44

Net Other Income 465,554.44

Net Income 0.00

 Page 2 of 2Page 28 of 72



2022 
Impact Report

Page 29 of 72



OUR MISSION
We work to break the cycle of child abuse and

neglect, supporting children as they find their voice
and helping children and families heal and thrive.

OUR VISION
We envision a world in which every child has the

opportunity to be happy, healthy, and safe; parents
and caregivers understand the impact of their actions
on children; and our community actively and vocally

stands up to child abuse and neglect.

Page 30 of 72



The past year was jam-packed--2022 was a year that will go down in the books as another
record year, including high-demand for child abuse assessment and support services,
leadership change, and a 25-year anniversary! Looking back, I see that despite obstacles and
challenges, by working together, we can accomplish so much for children in crisis.
 
Demand for child abuse assessment and support services persisted at a high level throughout
the past year. Unfortunately, factors related to the pandemic continue to create the “perfect
storm” for child abuse and neglect. The ABC House Assessment Team worked tirelessly to
serve every child who walked through our doors. Thanks to you, a record 833 local children
and families in crisis received the specialized care and support they needed.  

Let me share with you a story that sheds some light on how the complexities of the pandemic
can impact our children. Shyanne and Sara (not their real names) live with their mom, a single,
working mother. Not long after the pandemic started, their mother lost her job and had no
resources to help her family. With no other place to turn, she moved them in with her uncle
who offered a place to stay for as long as they needed. This act of kindness, however, turned
into a nightmare after both children became victims of sexual abuse by their own family
member. School wasn’t in session, youth programs were not available, and both girls had
nowhere to turn for immediate help. After they disclosed to a friend what was happening to
them, they were able to get help and were referred for services at ABC House. Thanks to you,
these girls, and so many children like them, had access to essential services targeted for their
recovery so they could begin healing. 
  
When we talk about child abuse and neglect, sometimes the problem sounds so big that we
can’t even take it in or think about it. We try to ignore it and hope the reality of it never
touches those we love. But for these two girls, and the hundreds of families every year whose
reality it is, their call for help is real, urgent, and amplified. Their calls are answered by caring
individuals like you, who are willing to take action and continue fighting on their behalf.
  
In the short time I’ve been here, I have learned so much. I have learned that we are much
stronger if we work together in the fight against child abuse and neglect. I have learned that
our community members are willing to learn ways to prevent abuse if we give them the
opportunity. And, I’ve learned that children can recover from the trauma of abuse if they have
the care, support, and tools they need.  
 
I am so grateful to be a part of a group that is passionately dedicated to helping children who
have experienced abuse. Every member of the ABC House team pours their heart into their
work, and willingly makes sacrifices to help children in crisis. But, we cannot do this work
without partners like you! Children and families cannot receive the help they need without
contributions from caring donors.  
 
Your giving makes every action we take to help a child in crisis possible. Thank you for refusing
to give up on our children when they are at their most vulnerable. Your support means healing
and hope for the children and families who enter our doors every day.  
 
As we look forward to our 26th year of service and beyond, I know this will still be true: when
we come together, there truly is no limit to what we can accomplish for children impacted by
abuse or neglect! 
 

A YEAR IN REVIEW

Karsen O'Bryan
Executive Director Page 31 of 72



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Stephenie Martinenko-Ray, Board President

Jeff Kline, Vice President/President-Elect
Debbi Richards, Secretary

Kori Sarrett, Treasurer
Jason Yutzie, Past President

 Faylene Gardner, Board Member
Gordon Vogt, Board Member
Hayley Boss, Board Member

Jen Camarillo-Robinson, Board Member
Neftali Pizano, Board Member

Norm Jager, Board Member
Rosa Plascencia, Board Member

Steve George, Board Member

STAFF
Karsen O'Bryan, Executive Director

Dr. Carol Chervenak, Medical Director
Glenda Lonstron, Development Director

 Ariel Lewis, Operations Director
 

Mindy Boland, Counselor
Ryan Catarius, Clinical Supervisor
Jen Cervantes, Medical Assistant

Dr. Carissa Cousins, Medical Provider
Dave Dietrich, Finance Specialist

Leslie Fager, Development Coordinator
Erin Ferris, Director of Assessment Programs

Deanna Hubele, Donor Relations Specialist
Itamar Jimenez, Lead Family Support Advocate

Terea Johnson, Intake Specialist
Courtney Kennison, Medical Provider

Carla Medel, Medical Clerical Assistant
Amanda Patterson, Lead Forensic Interviewer

Lexie Schwend, Administrative Assistant
Rebecca Simmons, Community Prevention Coordinator

Cailee Stahl, Family Support Advocate
Bailey Weber, Forensic Interviewer

Xander, Courthouse-Facility Dog Page 32 of 72



Linn County
75.6%

Benton County
22.3%

Other
2%

50% 30% 19%

GENDERAGE

COUNTY OF RESIDENCE

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Physical Abuse 

Sexual Abuse 

Neglect 

Threat of Harm 

Witness to Violence 

Other 

ALLEGATION

Children & Youth Served Service Appointments

Community Members Trained

2022 YEAR IN REVIEW

Emergency Medical Consultations

ASSESSMENT CLIENT STATISTICS

0-6 years 7-12 years 13-18 years

47% Male
52% Female
  1% Non-Binary

1,460

3,966

833

193
Total Community Members

Served

4,799

Page 33 of 72



Forensic Interviews
Forensic interviews are legally justifiable, fact-finding interviews with a child conducted by

professionals trained in talking to children to obtain accurate and objective information.
The purpose of a digitally recorded forensic interview is to reduce the number of times

children need to share their experience.

241 Interviews

Families receive support to help them cope with the discovery of abuse and navigate at a time
when their lives have turned upside-down. Our Advocates provide families with information
to help non-offending caregivers understand the child abuse assessment and investigation

processes, as well as connect them to any needed community resources.

Family Advocacy & Support Services

OUR SERVICES
Our medical providers are child abuse experts and remain supportive, objective, and

neutral throughout the child's head-to-toe exam. Any physical signs of abuse are
documented and may be used as evidence in the abuse investigation. Equally important,
children have the opportunity to ask questions about how the abuse may have affected

their bodies and development, and to receive reassurance from our trained staff.

Medical Exams & Consultations

933 Medical Services

 361 Family Support
Sessions

Trauma Counseling
ABC House counselors specialize in trauma treatment to help children and their family

members process what has happened to them and move forward. Children learn strategies
to help them manage their fear or feelings of being out-of-control when remembering

abusive events, and to focus on their own strengths and abilities. These services are offered
as long as they are needed.

79 Children & Youth - 148 Family Members - 666 Clinical Hours Page 34 of 72



Girls Circle is a peer support group for female-identifying youth that
combines creative activity and facilitated discussion to build resiliency and
self-esteem. Group sessions are held in an emotionally safe setting where
girls are encouraged to share experiences that are helpful to one another.

Support Group SessionsYouth Participants

87

2,815

93

1 13 13

538

Community Education 
& Prevention

As a leading voice on child abuse prevention and awareness, we believe that education is
the key to ending child abuse. With a mission centered on breaking the cycle of abuse and

neglect, ABC House offers numerous in-person and online safety trainings to the public,
free of charge. In 2022, we reached nearly 4,000 children, youth and adults in Linn and

Benton Counties - setting a new record for our community education program.

Children Educated

Participating High Schools

Youth Educated

Child Presentations Youth Presentations

613
Adults Educated

36
Adult Presentations

Page 35 of 72



While this event has evolved over the last few years, between November 20th - December 5th, nearly
200 participants bid in the online auction to support ABC House. The event featured over 100 packages!

Community Fundraisers

Raised

Fundraisers Hosted

ABC House is fortunate to enjoy the generosity of so many individuals, businesses, and organizations in
the community that host several fundraising events. From birthday fundraisers, 50/50 raffles, to

generous merchants donating a portion of their sales, all these amazing individuals and groups make
healing possible!

FUNDRAISING EVENTS

Each spring, ABC House hosts one of Linn and Benton counties' most highly anticipated events. 
In our second virtual year, Celebrate Hope, presented by Town & Country Realty, raised vital funding to
provide essential services to children who have been victimized by abuse and neglect in our community.

Celebrate Hope

Holly Jolly Online Auction

ABC House hosts events throughout the year to increase child abuse awareness and
raise critical funds, which enables hundreds of children to access vital assessment and

support services.

Raised

Raised

$133,442

$17,226

39 $47,077

Superhero Fun Run & Walk
Our newest family-friendly event, ABC House held the inaugural Superhero Fun Run & Walk in August of

2022 at the Crystal Lake Sports Field in Corvallis. In anticipation of the event, we were excited to announce
our first annual Cape Day for businesses. Businesses had the opportunity to purchase capes for their

employees and/or customers to proudly show their support for child abuse awareness and prevention.

Raised

$38,754

Page 36 of 72



WAYS TO GET INVOLVED
Engage!

Businesses, organizations, and
individuals can support fundraising

events by attending, sponsoring,
volunteering, or hosting your own

community fundraiser!
 

Contact Janique at
coordinator@abchouse.org.

Spread the Word!
Like and share our updates and

events on social media and talk with
your friends, family, coworkers, or

groups about ABC House!
 

Thank you!

Take a Training!
We believe that prevention education is

the key to ending child abuse. 
ABC House offers free child abuse
prevention trainings in English and

Spanish to the public, groups,
organizations, and businesses! 

Learn more at
www.abchouse.org/training.

Donate!
You can make a difference to a child by
donating throughout the year or every

month by joining the 
Friends of Hope 

monthly giving program. 
 

You can also include ABC House in your
estate planning.

 
www.abchouse.org/donate

 
Your giving matters! 

Page 37 of 72



Because of your generosity, we are able to continue our mission of helping
children in crisis. This is a snap-shot of our fiscal year July 2021 - June 2022.

FINANCIAL STABILITY

Support & Revenue: $2,463,786

Expenses: $1,877,107

Fundraisers
9%

Donations
33%

Grants
43%

Fees for Services
10%

Other
2%

Program Services
76%

Fundraising
17%

Management & General
7%

In-Kind
3%

Page 38 of 72



$50,000+

DONORS

Chambers Family Foundation  
David and Darlene Chambers  

Dala's Blue Angels  
Elijah List Ministries, Inc.  
Tom and Debbie Gerding  

The Healy Foundation  
Hillman Family Foundations  

Norm and Sandy Jager  
Juan Young Trust  

Linn County Oregon  
Michael T. & Burmah A. Rainbolt Donor Advised Fund of the Benton

Community Foundation  
Paul and Monica Bancroft Family Foundation  

Samaritan Health Services  
Spirit Mountain Community Fund  

Starker Forests, Inc.  
Town & Country Realty  

Trust Management Services  
United Way of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties  

Wheeler Foundation  
 

We are so grateful for the incredible individuals, businesses, foundations, and organizations that
supported ABC House in 2022 through monetary and in-kind donations. We are very honored
you chose to do your part to bring healing to abused and neglected children in Benton & Linn

Counties. If we have inadvertently missed you or misspelled your name, please contact the
Development Office at 541-926-2203 or dhubele@abchouse.org.

Names with an asterisk "*" are Friends of Hope monthly donors.

Benton County Oregon  
Doris and Bill Scharpf Foundation  

 

$10,000 to $49,999 

Page 39 of 72



Albany East Lions Club  
Albany Optimist Club  

Albany Police Benevolent Assn  
Dale and Elizabeth Bargsten  

Bill Barish and Carol Chervenak  
Citizens Bank  

City Of Millersburg  
City Of Philomath  
Corvallis Knights  

Entek International LLC  
Esta Rose Fund of Oregon Community Foundation  

Gerding Builders, LLC  
Wally and Mary Gustav  
Jim and Kathy Hubele  

Huycke Family Charitable Fund  
IBEW Local 280  

The Integrity Foundation  
Kenagy Family Farm  

Fred Koontz
William Langer 
Ward Mackey  

  

 
MDU Resources Foundation 

Frank and Linda Morse 
Nutrien Ag Solutions, Inc. 
Pacific Power Foundation 

PacificSource Health Plans 
Pioneer Connect 

Premiere Property Group 
Ralph and Linda Scariano 

Helen Smith 
Sure Clean Northwest 

Sybaris Bistro 
Target Corporation 
Thayer Design Build 

Gordon and Karen Vogt 
Charlene Walters 

Weyerhaeuser Giving Fund 
Bruce and Sheila Wheeler 
Dr. Rick and Ellen Wopat 

Lorrie Young * 
Jason and Staci Yutzie * 

Zonta Service Foundation of Corvallis

Aaron's  
AAsum-Dufour Funeral Home  

Roy and Kathryn Apter  
Fred and Sheelagh Baily  

Bedore Family Trust  
C. D. Carpenter  

Central Willamette Credit Union  
Cheldelin Middle School  

CMH Manufacturing  
Coastal Farm and Ranch  

Erik and Kay Dee Cole  
Complete Plumbing Systems, Inc.  

Consumers Power Inc.  
The Corvallis Clinic  

Randolph and Michele Crenshaw  
Jonathan Crow and Jane Snyder * 

 

Clay and Donna Dluehosh * 
Dutch Bros Coffee  

Pat and Elaine Eastman  
First Christian Church  

Fraternal Order of Eagles Aerie #2255  
Dwayne and Faylene Gardner * 
Steve George and Cathy Law * 

Dr. Mike and Suzann Goger  
Thomas and Gail Graham * 

Valerie and Dale Hall  
Joy Henkle and Bob Meister  

Hubbard Family Trust * 
Dianne Jager Crooker  

Ben and Anita Johnson  
Garry Jones and Katherine Anderson Jones  

Peter and Patti Kenyon  
 

$2,500 to $9,999 

$1,000 to $2,499 

Page 40 of 72



Rachel Kittson-MaQatish * 
Jeff Kline

Knife River  
John and LaWanda Kollaer  

Greg and Dana Kosmala  
Lebanon Elks Lodge #1663  
Joseph and Ann Longtin * 
Jim and Becky Merryman  
Don and Kathleen Morris  

Susan Morton  
Chris and Tasha Mosbrucker * 

NW Natural  
OnPoint Community Credit Union  

Oregon State Credit Union  
Pacific Power  

 

James Phelps 
Phi Kappa Psi Oregon Beta  

Republic Services  
Noma Ann Rietmann  

River's Edge Pet Medical Center  
Jake Robinson and Jenny Gilmore-Robinson * 

SELCO Community Credit Union  
Sally Steelhammer  
The Storage Depot  

Bryce and Kelly Thorpe * 
Thrivent Charitable Impact & Investing  

Penny Timmons * 
Lisa Tracy  

David and Carol Triebes * 
Robert and Joyce Weatherly

2 Towns Ciderhouse  
Faye Abraham  

Accuity LLC Certified Public Accountants  
Ace Buyers of Albany  

T Paul and Tarillis Adams  
Albany Animal Hospital  

Albany Antique Mall  
Albany Eagles Ladies Auxiliary #2255  

Albany Women's Golf Association  
All Pro Property Services  

Anita Allen  
Linda Allen  

Rose Marie Allen  
Mary Allen-Lyddon  

AmazonSmile Foundation  
American Bookkeeping and Tax  

American Family Insurance  
America's Best Local Charities (Maguire Inc.)  

Rich and Julie Ames * 
Diana Anderson  
Jessica Andrew  

Ankeny Vineyard  
  

Sierra Anthony  
Aria Organic Skin Spa  

Hector Ariceaga * 
Hector and Gabrielle Ariceaga  

Meleah and Scott Ashford  
Jim and Elke Asleson  
Diane E. Aspengren  

Timothy and Patricia Atha  
Xan Augerot  

avenue2possibilities LLC * 
Lisa Avery  

Bev Babbitt  
Jacob and Tiffany Backer  

Douglas and Kathryn Baily  
Stephen and Diane Bancroft  

Becky Bangs  
Bank of America  

Barnabas Foundation  
Cara Barnes  

Bar-Sto Precision  
Andrea Bartell  

Bartlett Tree Experts  
 

$999 and below (includes in-kind donors)

Page 41 of 72



Caleb and Elizabeth Bauermeister * 
Andy and Kathy Bean  

Bob and Alice Bean  
Bill Beasley  

Ryan and Jennifer Beathe  
Edward and Nancy Beaudry  

Robin Beechert  
Julie Behrends * 
Kathy Behrends  

Thomas and Linda Bell  
David and Cathy Benneth  

Chantal Bennett  
Matt and Janel Bennett  
Bennington Properties  

Bill Bentley  
Mary Bentley  

Benton Community Foundation  
Benton County Board of Commissioners  

Cindy Bethell  
Tammy Bethman * 

Beulah Rebekah Lodge No 35 IOOF  
Big 5 Sporting Goods  

Robert Bilyeu  
Bi-Mart  

Bish's RV of Junction City  
Michael and Shannon Biteng * 

Josiah Blaisdell  
Blue Dawg Promotions  

John Blum  
Lindsay Boeshans  

Boldt, Carlisle, and Smith Div of SingerLewak  
Lacey Bolduc  
Greg Bolton  
Paul Bomber  

Sara Bond  
Patrick and Elizabeth Boren  

Matt Boring  
Amy Borntreger  
Trish Borowski  

Hayley Boss  
Kris Bowen  

 
 

Ed and Tawni Boyd * 
Boys & Girls Club of The Greater Santiam  

Lore Brandt  
Diane Branson  

Jennifer Brausch  
Pam Briggs  
Lisa Brown  
Sara Brown  

Richard and Carolyn Brumley  
Veronica Bruner * 

Juanita Brush  
Bullwinkle's  

Burcham's Metals  
Derek Burchfield  
Burn Bootcamp  

Burst's Chocolates  
Doug and Joy Byers  

Vicki A Byrd  
Cadwell Realty Group  

Logan Caldwell  
Phyllis Calestoni  

Jen Camarillo-Robinson  
Linda Cameron  

Camron Ridge Farmstead  
Carcraft  

Donna Carlile  
Patty Carper * 

Quincy and Talara Casey * 
Marie Cassandra  

Mark and Judy Casteel  
Steven Castro  
Ryan Catarius  

Catholic Daughters of America  
Central Linn Lions Club  

Chapter EP of Albany PEO  
Chateau Bianca  
Gloria Chaves  

Chemeketa Cellars  
Citizens Bank Albany 14th Ave Branch  

Lee-Anne Clark  
Mike and Kay Clark  

 
 

Page 42 of 72



John and Anna Clawson  
Adrian Colborn  

Coldwell Banker Valley Brokers * 
Shawn Cole and Melissa McNulty  

Frances Collier  
Columbia Seeds LLC  
Common Fields, LLC  

Community Foundation of Greater Des Moines  
Paula and Tim Connaghan  

Conundrum House  
David Cook  

Charles and Catherine Cooper  
Corvallis Police Department  

Costco  
Rebecca and Barry Cousins  

Wendy Cousins-Savage * 
Marla Crane  

Mary Crawford-Seekatz and Jeff Seekatz  
Crumbl Corvallis  

Candis Cunningham  
Mark Curtis  

Tom and Elizabeth Cutsforth  
David Dahlin  
Kim Daley * 

Dancing Oaks Nursery and Gardens  
Hans Dassen  

Maryann Davenport  
Barbara Davis  

Eric Dazey  
 Gerald and Jane Dekam  

Michael DeLollis  
Christine Denison  
Vicki Desrosiers  
Kathie DeWitt  
Deborah Diaz  

Mark and Linda Ditgen  
Sam Dittmer and Lisa Metz-Dittmer  

Jay and Patricia Dixon  
Lisa Dixon  

Paul and Linda Dole  
Sarah and James Dorgan  

 

Debbie Dorman  
Barbara Downing  
Elizabeth Drielle  
Becky Dubrasich  
Charlene Dunten  

Gretchen Dursch and Steven Smith  
Penni Durst  

Jennifer Duvall  
Sean Duvall  

Charlie and Mary Eads  
Edward Jones, Chris Scariano  

Dale Edwards  
Elm Street Family Dental  

Kelly Elmore  
Emerson Vineyards  
Emma Downtown  
Enchanted Forest  

Enduring A's Chapter, Model A Ford Club of
America  

Stephanie Engle  
Claudia Esguerra-Herrera  

Eugene Ballet  
Eugene Symphony  

Bronwyn Evans  
Richard and Claudia Evans  

Dan and Leslie Fager  
Glenn and Amy Fairall * 

Faithful Friends Animal Clinic  
Robert and Tiffany Fallows * 

Holly Ferrioi  
Susan and Doug Ferris  

Rosie Feyereisen * 
Charlotte Fidler  

Clifford Scott Filley * 
Amanda Filloy  

First Alternative Co-op  
First Christian Church Lebanon  

Cynthia Fischer  
Catherine Fisher  

Stan and Kathy Fisher
Fitzpatrick Painting and Construction  

Page 43 of 72



Ken and Bambi Fletcher  
Flowers-N-More  

James and Stefanie Ford * 
Linda Fortune  

Stephanie Franklin  
Fred Meyer  

Bruce Frey and Laura Hansen  
David and Valerie Fulleton * 

Beth Fults  
Furniture Share  

Cyrel Gable  
Garland Nursery  
Heather Gehrett  
Jordan Gerding * 
Sarah Giboney  

Travis and Stephanie Giboney  
The Gillott Home Team, Keller Williams * 

Marilyn Girdler  
Charlene Giuffre * 

Givinga Foundation, Inc.  
James Glover  

Brent and Priscilla Godek * 
Bret and Diana Godfrey  

Andy and Wanda Godwin  
Astin Godwin * 

Going Green Albany Inc  
Good Grounds Coffee Shop  

Ed Goodell  
Kari Goodyear * 

Mark and Jody Gordon  
Suzie Gostkowski  

Jean Goul  
The Grotto  

Christopher Haase  
Linda and Earl Hadfield  

Kristi Halleman  
Hallmark Resort Newport  

Willie Hamilton  
Thomas and Marlene Hammer  

Donna Hanning  
Anna Harding  

 

Dani Harp  
Patricia Harrahill  

Harrington Family Living Trust, Survivor's Share  
Donna Harrington  
Mary Lynn Harris  

Matt and Crystal Harris  
Robert and Michele Harris  
Clive and Hilary Harrison  
Glenn and Carol Harrison  

Kimberly Harrison  
Michael and Meagan Harsen  

Jeff Hart  
Kenneth and Barbara Hart  
Davis and Michael Harte * 

Hart's Janitorial  
Brodie Harvey  

Donald and Barbara Hauge  
Laura Hawkins  

Hazella Bake Shop  
Healing Motion Physical Therapy  
Richard and Barbara Heintzman  

Kim Henderson  
Hendrix Heating & Air Conditioning  

Lynn Henriksen  
Edward and Barbara Henze  

Randy and Cynthia Hereford  
Laura Hickerson  

Marilyn Hill  
John and Susan Hobbs  

Bruce and Nancy Hodge  
Ed and Heather Hodney  

Cherilyn and William Hoffman
Robert and Julie Holaway  

Betty Holcomb  
Andrea and Rod Holmquist * 
HomeSmart Realty Group * 

Honey Mint Pediatric Dentistry  
John and Frances Hood-Fysh  

Laurie Houston  
Jay Howard * 

William and Molly Howe  
 

Page 44 of 72



Jeff and Dianna Howell  
Curt and Deanna Hubele  
Aaron and Emily Huff * 

Joy Huffman  
Rachel Huizenga  

Chrys Hulshof  
The Human Bean  

Hush Medical Aesthetics  
Pat and Rhonda Hynes  

Immanuel Lutheran Church  
Independent Merchant Brokers  

In-N-Out Burger  
Integrity Floors, Inc.  

Larry and Karen Jackson  
Jessica Jacobsen  

Derryl and Jennifer James  
Michael Jochimsen  

Carl and Gloria Johnson * 
Justyn and Ashley Johnson  

Theresa Johnson  
Virginia Johnson  

Larry and Doris Johnston  
Jim Jones and Janet Lacer-Jones  

MollyAnne Jones  
Angie Jordan  

Joynt Family Chiropractic 
Heidi Junge  

Chari Justesen  
Lawrence Kaylor and Caroline Baker * 

Glen Kearns  
Rodney and Barbara Keller  

Maggie Kelly  
Jesse and Courtney Kennison  

Laurie Kerp  
Dan Keteri  

Kevin Vogt Homes  
Amie and Andy Keys * 

Nigel Khan  
Rhonda Kidney  
Danelle Kindred  

King Office Equipment and Design  
 

Lonny and Mary Ellen King  
Matt King  

Cherise Kish * 
Michelle Kittrell  

Jamie Kitzrow and Lisa Schwartz  
James Kling  
Erica Knecht  

Michelle Knighton * 
Tricia Kocurek  
Erica Koenig  

Lindsay Kolar  
Jedidiah and Andrea Kollaer * 

Sachin Korde  
Barbara Kraemer  
Kendall Kramer  
Barbara Krochta  

Dana Kropf  
Randy and Jody Kruse  

Lisa La Ront  
Stacie LaFollette  

Kate Lajtha  
Jacob and Sue Lamp  

Emily Lancaster  
Hannah Lara  

Larissa's Custom Creations LLC and KM
Electrical Solutions  

Varon Larsen  
Margaret Larson * 

Suzanne Larson  
John and Jean Lasseter  
Laurie's Pilot Service * 

Lebanon High Class of '61 Warriorettes  
Charles Leland  

Dr. Dick & Mrs. Sparkle Lemmons * 
Darlene Lewis  

Lifetime Vision Source of Lebanon LLC  
Lift Marketing  
Matt Lindberg  

Mike and Melissa Long  
Sue Long  

Allen and Glenda Lonstron   
 

Page 45 of 72



Dianna Looney  
Emily Looney  

Patricia Lorenzen  
Amber and Garrett Lovejoy  

Lowe's Regional Distribution Center  
Karen Luchessa and Bob Speaker  

Lumos Wine Co  
Michelle Luna  
Lux Athleisure  

Luxe Medical Aesthetics  
Marcia Macomber  

Lois Malango  
Tiffany Malsberger  

John and Margie Marchel  
Market of Choice #7  

Gary and Elaine Markley  
Mary Marks  

Angelina Marquez  
Deena and Jason Marruffo  

Sam Martin  
Kindra Martinenko  

Lyn Martinenko  
Stephenie Martinenko-Ray * 

Mark Matteson  
Jennifer Mays * 
Sue McDonald  

Cheryl McGrath  
Jeff and Becky McMahon * 

Bryan and Lisa Meier * 
Mark E Mellbye  

Stacy Mellem and Jim Luebke  
Michele Melton  

Chris and Vicki Meyer  
Michele Martin Insurance  

David Milam  
Amiee Miller  

Courtney Miller  
Dennis and Molly Miller  
Gary and Joanne Miller  

JoAnn R. Miller  
Thomas and Annette Miller  

Kathy Mitts  

Janet Mix  
Jodi Moade  

Maria Moehle  
Molly Slack DDS  

Dawn Montgomery  
John and Janie Moody * 

Joyce Moreira  
Dale and Kathy Morgan  

Morning Star Grange 311  
Pam Morris  

M. Dee Moyes  
Rebecca and Joshua Moyes * 

Brett Murray  
The Natty Dresser  

Museum of Natural and Cultural History  
Thad and Joanne Nelson  

Amber Nichole  
Jennifer Nold  

Kent and Bonnie Nordlund  
North Albany IGA  

Nelda and Ronald Noss  
Andrew and Karen Nousen  

Oakshire Brewing  
Di O'Bryan  

Karsen O'Bryan and Peter Behrends * 
Patrick and Stephanie O'Connor * 

OFD Foods  
Karen Olson  

Rebecca Olson * 
Orangetheory Fitness Corvallis  

Oregon Coast Aquarium  
Oregon Real Estate Professionals  

Oregon Retired Educators Assoc Unit 18  
Oregon Winter Fest  

Rhiana Orr  
Laura Ouellette  

Thomas and Victoria Ozanich  
Lester and Judy Pace  

Linda Pace and Austin Mattson II * 
Brandon Padgett  

Rose Palmer  
Melinda Papen  

  

Page 46 of 72



Richard and Corine Parrish  
Mark and Amanda Patterson  

James F Patton * 
Michelle Payne  

Mike Payne  
Anne Peltier  

Michele Perce  
Carole Perkins  

Brian and Jessica Perlenfein  
Danette Perry  

Jo Perryman and Klaus Schilde * 
David and Dana Peterson  

Mallory Phelan * 
Cathy Phillips  

Janeen Phillips * 
Robert and Rebecca Pieper * 

David Pierce  
Kama-Love Pierce  

Jon Pirie and Nancy Powell  
Neftali Pizano  

Darren Podrabsky  
Portland Nursery  

William and Michele Powell  
Debbie Price  
Sherri Price  

George and Cheryl Pugh  
Randy Raggon  

Mark and Alice Rampton  
Mike Ransom * 

Patrick and Debrah Rarick  
Shadrach Rasmussen  

Mark Raum  
Raw Hair Society  

Gavin Ray  
David Raymond  
William Reagan  

Tim and Pam Rediger  
Kylar Reed  

Reid Building Professional Offices  
Joseph and Kathleen Reilly  

Doug and Pam Reiner  
Larry and Janet Reinholt  

  

Resource Connections of Oregon  
The Reynolds Law Firm, PC  

Rhodes-Warden Insurance Agency  
Linda Rice  

Debbi and Robert Richards  
Priscilla and Dwayne Rietmann * 

William and Karla Brewer Robbins  
Scott and Amy Roberts  

Heather Robinson  
Mike Rochelle * 

James and Amanda Roe  
Timothy Roels  

Rollin Oldies Car Club  
Francis Rosica and Sara Behrman  

Rotary Club of Lebanon  
Janice Rounds  
Denine Rowe  
Staci Rubesh  

Brice Rust  
George Sachs  

Sharon Sackett  
Ryan and Angela Sally  

Chris Sarrett  
Chuck Sarrett  
Kori Sarrett * 

Allison Saucedo  
Kalen Sayre  

Janice Schable  
Bettina Schempf  

Jim and Ginny Schroeder  
Angela Schuler  

Jim and Carol Schweitzer  
Sarah Segar  
Terri Shank * 

Stormy Shanks  
David Sheehan and Liz Sokolowski * 

James and Noreen Sheehan  
  Kim Shelby  
Eddie Shen  

Mark and Carolyn Shepard * 
Jerald and Diane Shipman  

Shonnard's Nursery 
 

Page 47 of 72



Randall and Pamela Silbernagel  
Silver Falls Terrariums  

Jonathan Smart  
Betty Jean Smith  

Dennis Smith  
Eric and Jenetta Smith  

Holly Smith * 
Monte Smith  

Ron and Katie Smith  
Stanford and Marilyn Smith  

Lisa Smithburg  
Laurel Smouse  

Julie Snider  
Stephen and Janice Snyder  

Valentina Soares  
Southpaw's Perfect Pizza & Sports Pub  

Floyd and Fran Sperle  
Kevin Sperry  

Mike and Tami Speten  
St. Alban's Episcopal Church  

Cailee Rose Stahl  
Mike Standen * 

Starkweather Racing  
Mitch Stevenson  

Tim Stewart and Karin Krakauer  
Norma Stitt  

K. C. Stoakes  
Jerilyn Stone  

Gerald and Noel Storms  
Brandon Stoulil and Heidi May-Stoulil  

Heather Strickland  
Brian and Tara Stroup  

Donald and Cecelia Stubblefield  
Summit Cleaning & Restoration  

Sunshine Garden Club
Suzanne Swan  

Keith and Carol Swank  
Marsha Swanson * 

Sweet Adeline's Custom Cookies  
Nova Sweet

Ursula Tabor  
Bonnie Taylor  

 

Charles and Connie Taylor  
Matthew Tedisch  

Keo and Leo Teghtmeyer  
Anne Temple  

Rachelle Thayer  
Elizabeth Thill  

Kristina Thompson  
Robert Thompson  

Wiley and Kristina Thompson  
Mischele Tiessen  

Liz Tilson-Ramirez * 
David and Toni Tinch  

Gary and Rebecca Tolentino * 
Jack Towns * 
Trader Joe's  

Roger and Debra Truax  
Penny Truelove  

The UK Online Giving Foundation  
John and Vicki Ulrich * 
John-Tyler Valenzuela  

Valley Rock Gym  
Michelle Van De Hey  
Kathleen Van Deusen  

Renate Viazzoli  
Brian and Dawn Vorderstrasse  

Gary and Kathie Vosper  
Esther Walker and Carole Estherchild  

Peter Walker * 
Doryce Wall  

Tiffany and Cara Walter * 
Mark Wang * 

Sandy Warneking  
Chris and Traci Warner  

Timothy and Jessica Washko  
Ryan and Audrey Wasmund * 

D Vincent Waterhous  
Judy Watson  

Michaela Watson  
WCIS, LLC  

Bev Weaver  
Jeremy and Trish Weber  

Jay and Shannon Weekly * 
 

Page 48 of 72



Christian Welch  
Josh and Kristin Wells * 

Traci Wendell  
Weyerhaeuser-Santiam  

Denise Wheeler  
Josh and Beatrice Whisenhunt  

Lynne Whiteman  
Nancyann Whitley  
Richard G Wijers  

Wilco  
Wildlife Safari  

Kent and Lynn Wiles  
Willamette Chapter SDC  
Bobby Williams Herrera * 

Carol Williams  
Rebecca Williams  

Rhiannon Williams  
Patricia J Wilson  

Pamela Woitt 
 
 

Kristina Wonderly  
Frances Wong * 
Savannah Wong  

Amy Wooden  
Larry and Sally Wright  
Wendie Wunderwald  

Nancy Wyse  
Stacie Wyss-Schoenborn  

Xtreme Grafx  
Ani Yardumian  
Angela Yeats  
Donna Young  
Katie Younger  

Steve and Shelly Yutzie  
Timothy Zacharias  

Jennifer Zeck  
Pam Zeemin * 

Joseph and Rosemary Zigler  
 

Page 49 of 72



PO Box 68 | Albany, OR 97321
www.abchouse.org Page 50 of 72



Page 51 of 72



Page 52 of 72



Page 53 of 72



Page 54 of 72



Page 55 of 72



Page 56 of 72



Page 57 of 72



Page 58 of 72



Page 59 of 72



Page 60 of 72



Page 61 of 72



Page 62 of 72



Page 63 of 72



Page 64 of 72



Page 65 of 72



Page 66 of 72



Page 67 of 72



Page 68 of 72



Page 69 of 72



Page 70 of 72



Donations and Sponsorship Request Application 
Not for profit groups and organizations, registered charities or government entity 

Name of Organization/Government Entity: 

Contact Person:   Position: 

Phone:    Email: 

Mailing Address:  

Name of Project or Activity:  

Project or Activity Start Date:    End Date: 

Amount of Funding Sought: $ 

Total Cost of the Project or Activity: $ 

Has the Project or Activity been Held Previously? Yes No 
Details: 

Have you Received Funds from City of Millersburg Previously? Yes No 

Is your Organization Not-for-Profit or a Government Entity?  Yes No 

PROJECT OR ACTIVITY DETAILS 
Describe the project or activity for which you are seeking support. 
(Feel free to attach any supporting documentation.) 

What is the purpose of your group/organization? 

What are the objectives or outcomes to be achieved by the project or activity? 

Due Date: April 19, 2024 

Page 71 of 72



What is the benefit to the Millersburg community of the project or activity? 
(e.g. job creation, structured activities for disadvantaged youth, support to senior citizens) 

How will the project or activity be promoted and how will you measure, evaluate, and report 
its success?  
(e.g. audience surveys, attendee numbers, verbal feedback) 

Has your organization applied to, or does it intend to apply to, another organization for cash 
or in-kind support for the project or activity? If yes, please provide details. 

DECLARATION 
Declaration of not-for-profit group or organization or registered charity. 

I certify the organization making this application is a not-for-profit group or organization or a 
registered charity. 

Name:  Position: 

Signature:  Date: 

SUBMISSION PROCESS 
The information sought in this application regarding the project or activity is required to 
enable Council to reach a fair decision about the request for funding. Please provide 
information in a concise manner and ensure a clear statement is presented for each item. 

Further information may be requested during the application process. Please provide any 
information requested in a timely manner. 

Questions regarding this application should be directed to the City Recorder at 458- 
233-6300 or email sdickerman@cityofmillersburg.org.

Page 72 of 72

mailto:kwollenb@cityofmillersburg.org

	Budget Committee 4-26-2024.pdf
	A_1_Budget Committee Meeting Agenda_4-30-2024

	Blank Page
	Budget Committee 4-26-2024
	E.1_Draft_Budget Committee Meeting Minutes_5-10-2023
	E.1_Draft_Budget Committee Meeting Minutes_5-16-2023
	F.1 ABC House_City of Millersburg Application Signed
	F.1.b_ABC House_City of Millersburg_Supporting Documentation
	F.1.c_ABC House FYE24 Assessment Program Budget (6)
	F.1.d_ ABC 2022 Annual Report (6)
	F.2 Boys and Girls Club Donations and Sponsorship Request Application FY 2024-2025 (1)
	F.3 Millersburg Cemetery City grant request 2024
	F.4 COA_Donations and Sponsorship Request Application FY 2024-2025
	F.5 Honor Flight Donation Request
	Donations F. 6-9
	F.10 PTC- Timberridge Millersburg Donations and Sponsorship Request Application FY 2024-2025


	Name of OrganizationGovernment Entity: Timber Ridge PTC
	Contact Person: Abby Johnson
	Phone: (541)231-5647
	Email: Timberridgeptc@gmail.com
	Mailing Address: 3061 NE Malachi Way 
	Project-Activity: Timber Ridge Carnival & Silent Auction
	Start Date: 03/15/25
	End Date: 03/15/25
	Amount of Funding Sought: 1500.00
	Total Cost: 3000.00
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Text3: I am delighted to share that our school carnival and silent auction recently concluded its second year, and it was a resounding success. The event garnered enthusiastic participation from Millersburg families and community members alike.
I would like to extend our heartfelt gratitude to the City of Millersburg for their generous cash donation. Their support had a significant impact, allowing us to offer exciting features such as bounce houses and a talented face painter. Additionally, we were able to procure quality food, decorations, and enticing prizes for our attendees.
As we reflect on this year’s achievements, we eagerly look forward to building upon our success. With each passing year, our goal remains clear: to make our carnival even more remarkable and enjoyable for everyone involved.
Thank you for being part of this wonderful journey, and we can’t wait to see what the future holds for our beloved school carnival.
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box8: Off
	Text9: We are delighted to announce the commencement of our 3rd Annual Carnival and Silent Auction. This event is a vibrant blend of engaging activities and contests specifically designed for student participation. Our carnival is a hub of excitement, featuring attractions such as bounce houses, a professional face painter, challenging parkour courses, a thrilling scooter maze, and a variety of games. To further enhance the festive atmosphere, we offer an array of food options and the opportunity to win enticing prizes.
This event serves as a significant gathering point for families from both Timber Ridge and Meadow Ridge Schools. In addition, we extend a warm invitation to community members who may not have children enrolled in our schools, fostering a sense of unity and shared enjoyment within our community. In order to ensure the success of this event, we will be investing in essential resources such as bounce houses, face painters, food, prizes, and other necessary supplies. We are actively seeking support to offset the costs associated with these crucial items, thereby ensuring the continued quality and enjoyment of our annual carnival. We look forward to your participation and support in making this event a resounding success.
	Text10: The Timber Ridge Parent-Teacher Council (PTC) is a collaborative body of dedicated parents and teachers who represent the interests of Timber Ridge School. Our mission is to enhance the educational experience of our students by conducting various fundraising events throughout the academic year.
These fundraisers play a crucial role in financing a wide array of activities both within and outside the classroom, including but not limited to field trips and field days. These experiences are instrumental in providing our students with a well-rounded education, fostering their intellectual curiosity, and promoting their physical well-being.
In addition to funding activities, our council also assists teachers in procuring necessary educational resources that may not be provided by the school. This initiative ensures that our educators are equipped with the tools they need to deliver high-quality instruction and create an optimal learning environment for our students.
We are committed to working together to create a supportive and enriching educational community at Timber Ridge School. Thank you for your continued support.
	Text11: The mission of the Timber Ridge School Parent Club is to provide unwavering support to our students and staff through diligent fundraising efforts and acts of stewardship. Our goal is to foster a cooperative environment that works in tandem with the community to promote comprehensive learning.
Our annual carnival is a key initiative in this mission. It serves as a platform to bring families together, fostering a sense of community while raising funds through admissions, a silent auction, and food sales. The funds raised play a pivotal role in supporting a variety of events and initiatives.
These include Halloween Trivia, Classified Appreciation, Wreath Sales, Teacher Appreciation, Field Day, 5th Grade Promotion, 8th Grade Promotion, Admin Appreciation, Field Trips, and Middle School Dances. Additionally, the funds also support teacher-requested grants, further enhancing our educational offerings.
In essence, our mission is to create a supportive and enriching educational environment at Timber Ridge School, and we are deeply grateful for your continued support in achieving this goal.
	Name: Abagail Johnson
	Position: President
	Date: 04/17/24
	Text12: A significant number of Timber Ridge's families and staff members are proud residents of Millersburg. Our initiatives present a unique opportunity for the community and families to partake in an enjoyable atmosphere, all while extending their support to Timber Ridge. The funds we raise play a crucial role in bolstering local businesses from whom we procure supplies. This creates a symbiotic relationship that benefits not just our school, but also the local economy. Furthermore, the city of Millersburg extends its support to Albany and other commendable businesses in the process. In essence, our endeavors serve as a conduit for community engagement, fostering a sense of unity and mutual support. We are deeply appreciative of the continued backing from our community and local businesses. Together, we strive to create a thriving educational environment at Timber Ridge. Thank you for your unwavering support.
	Text13: Our carnival will be promoted through a comprehensive marketing strategy encompassing social media, radio broadcasts, Parent Square, and physical flyers. This multi-channel approach ensures maximum reach and engagement within our community.The success of our event will be evaluated based on the financial contributions we receive, which directly reflect the support from our community. Additionally, we value qualitative feedback and will be keenly listening to the experiences shared by our teachers and families. Their enjoyment and satisfaction are integral to our measure of success.  
In our continuous effort to improve, we plan to implement a system to monitor the number of attendees at our future events. This will provide us with valuable data to better understand our reach and impact.
We are committed to creating memorable experiences while supporting Timber Ridge, and we look forward to your continued support in making our events a resounding success. Thank you.
	Text14: We are in the process of strategizing our outreach to various companies for their support, although we have not initiated these conversations as of yet. During our previous event, we sought contributions from a few local businesses, including Henry's Food Court. We were fortunate to receive modest cash donations, which were instrumental in bolstering our silent auction.
These partnerships not only provide financial support but also foster a sense of community involvement and shared responsibility. We are optimistic about forging similar alliances this year and are grateful for any assistance that helps us enhance the experience of our annual carnival. Thank you for your continued support.


